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The Daniel Angell House is a one-and-a-half story clapboarded 
house with a generous low-pitched gambrel roof and two chimneys, 
a large one of stone, which was original to the earliest section 
of the house, and one of brick at the east end in a later addition 
to the house. The house faces south, set back from and at an angle 
to what was known in Revolutionary War days as the Powder Mill 
Turnpike, later and presently known as Putnam Pike.

The elements of the facade of the house are not regularly placed 
within the plane, but rather mirror both the growth of the house 
through various periods and the early origin (probably around 1725) 
of the first section of the house, when classical concepts of arch­ 
itecture played little if any part in the thoughts and designs of 
the rural house-wright and farmer. Two windows to the left, the 
door, and one window to the right, all with relatively plain frames 
which project from the surface of the wall, open into the original 
western section of the house. The later section to the east displays 
a similar flathead door with two windows to its right. All the win­ 
dows have been restored to their original size and have nine over 
nine double-hung sash, appropriate to the period.

The large stone central chimney forms the core of the western 
part of the house, with small entry hall in front of the stack, 
parlor to the west, keeping room to the east, and three smaller 
rooms across the back. Framing visible in the cellar supports the 
thesis that the house was originally built as five rooms: the sill 
beneath the south (front)wall is continuous for the length of the 
two rooms plus entry hall (which rules out any thought that the house 
may have begun as that typically Rhode Island form, the one-room 
stone-ender), and the sills running south to north are continuous 
for the full depth of the house.

The keeping room is moderately-sized, with cased, beaded cor- 
nerposts, a single window, and plain plastered walls which give no 
hint of chair rail or wainscoting. A large cut-stone fireplace 
with plain flat-board surround with molded edge occupies most of 
the western wall. The splayed sides of the fireplace opening are 
a typically early treatment as is the location of the brick beehive 
bake oven in the rear wall (at the left). Various structural 
irregularities strongly suggest that the fireplace opening has been 
closed in from its original size. The stonework of the sides does 
not join or intermesh with that of the back. In the chimney throat, 
approximately a foot and a half higher than the lower edge of the 
present surround, are a stone shelf on the right of approximately
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five or six inches in depth and an insert into the stonework at the 
left, which may well indicate an earlier larger opening altogether. 
Moreover, the arched opening of the brick bake oven is awkwardly 
situated (almost behind the left flank of the fireplace opening) and 
awkwardly executed (the bricks forming the right half of the arch are 
set neatly on angle to serve as voussoirs; those forming the left half 
protrude like broken teeth).

The western front room of the original house is a parlor with 
recessed cupboard on the north wall(which is framed very simply and 
has lost its doors), cased, beaded corner posts, and fireplace with 
bolection molded surround and fine raised-panel full-height mantel 
with molded cornice. In this room, also, the walls are simply plastered, 
unadorned by cornice, dado or chair rail moldings.

The small entry hall between the two front rooms, opens 
onto the stairs. Originally without a door at the bottom, these 
narrow stairs start with a sharp turn and then make a straight run 
up to the garret, where a horizontal railing composed of three spaced 
flat planks edges the opening in the floor. A trap door probably closed 
this opening.

The garret was apparently not finished or partitioned in any 
way to begin with. Its large open space was heated by a small stone 
fireplace without mantel. This fireplace probably never did have 
a mantel, although sections of what appears to be a wooden nailing 
strip are still embedded in the stone about ten inches above the 
opening. The west end of the garret has been closed off, 
probably at a fairly early date, and shows traces of whitewash. A 
board and batten door (minus its original strap hinges, whose marks 
still show), opens into the later east addition to the house. The 
small brick fireplace in this room has been rebuilt by the present 
owners, but maintains its original dimensions and much of the 
original brick. The flathead dormer window in the central - section 
of the garret is a late nineteenth-century -Addition which-\will be 
removed in the course of restoration.

The continuous rafters from front to rear (south to north) in 
the garret reinforce the hypothesis that the house was originally 
built as five rooms. The vertical planking on the west end 
of the house beneath the clapboards shows no signs of having been cut 
or pieced and thus indicates that the original roof was a gambrel.
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The ell addition to the east contains one large room with plastered 
walls, beaded, cased corner posts, and good sized brick fireplace (with 
handsome flat-board surround and heavy molded cornice), a small closet 
to the south of the chimney stack, a back room with corner fireplace 
on the north side of the stack, and a small pantry between the back 
fireplace room and the pantry of the earlier section of the house.

Roofline marks visible in the eastern section of the garret, 
as well as the placement of cornerposts below, indicate that this 
addition was at first a pitch-roofed ell with its front (south) wall 
set back from the plane of the main house by about five feet. The 
final addition to the house was to move this wall forward and to cap 
the entire ell with a gambrel roof continuous with that of the main 
house.

Dating of the various sections of the house, based on a combin­ 
ation of structural elements and historical indicators, suggests that 
the original house dates from (and is typical of Rhode Island country 
houses of) c. 1725, that the eastern pitch-roofed ell was added 
prior to the Revolution, and that the final movement of the south ell 
wall and inclusion of this new space under one long continuous gambrel 
roof occurred shortly before 1800.
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stylistic characteristics belie this attribution, and strongly 
suggest that the house was standing before Daniel Angell was born. 
Genealogical information indicates that Daniel probably purchased the 
house from its original builder. Daniel was one of the nine sons of 
Stephen Angell(d. 1772) and served as a joint executor, with his 
brother William, of his father's will. Daniel "purchased of his 
brother William his right in the sawmill being one half of Olney's mill, 
the property where the Greystone factory now stands, in North Providence; 
this was his place of residence and the property was afterwards owned 
by his son Olney."-5 Deed research corroborates the fact that the 
house passed from Daniel to Olney in 1795. Olney kept a tavern in 
the house for a number of years; and is also credited with having 
started, along with Peleg Williams, Daniel Angell, and Matherson 
Latham, the Greystone factory in 1813. Greystone had about twenty 
looms and manufactured cotton cloth. The venture failed in 1816, but 
was soon purchased by a. new owner and re-opened.

The Daniel Angell House is of great value in the study and 
understanding of early Rhode Island homes. Little altered 
after Olney Angell's changes to it before 1800, the house is being 
carefully restored by its present owners, Mr. and Mrs. John Nanni. 
Such changes as they have had to make-- i.e. replacing sills and 
windows and excavating the central section of the basement (under 1 
the^keeping room) -- have been thoughtfully and precisely executed. 
Their work has helped to make it possible to date the various periods 
of structural growth based on framing evidences.

One of the unusual aspects of the house is the framing in the 
original section; it does not follow the summer beam scheme but 
rather uses heavy joists running into the chimney girt. The 
keeping room was built, not on a cellar (as was the west parlor) or 
even on a stone foundation, but on what the present owner describes 
as spaced facing stones with earth behind them, a highly unusual 
construction. In excavating this section of the cellar, the Nanni's 
discovered a number of bones and pipe shards, which should yield 
further information after archeological analysis.

That the garret and staircase remain in almost untouched 
condition is particularly unusual and valuable aspect of the house. 
The slant-backed shelves (originally a cupboard now missing its doors) 
above the corner fireplace in the back room of the eastern additon are
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another feature of the house worth noting.

The Daniel Angell House, despite its present-day setting, 
amidst ranch houses and faced by a small two-story apartment, remains 
uncompromised by either the passage of time or the restoration work 
currently being undertaken, which is excellent. It is a fine example 
of an early eighteenth-century rural Rhode Island house, unusual in 
a number of ways, and in remarkably unaltered condition.

1 Old Times In Graniteville,

2 Source unknown, December, 1934.

3 Genealogy of the Descendants of Thomas Angell, Who Settled 
in Providence, 1656, 1872.
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The history of the Daniel Angell House has been pieced together 
from an amalgam of genealogical research, educated guesses in working 
with old deeds, and local tradition. The Angell family were among 
the earliest settlers of Rhode Island. Thomas Angell, as an appren­ 
tice or servant, accompanied Roger Williams from England in 1631 and 
thereafter went with Williams when he was banished from the Massachu­ 
setts Bay Colony in 1636 to Seekonk and Rhode Island. Thomas Angell 
was one of the original members of the compact drawn up on August 20th, 
1637, to form the town fellowship of Providence.

Thomas is said to have owned land in what later became the Town 
of Johnston, taken from Providence and incorporated March 6, 1759. 
Thomas's grandson John (b. ?, d. 1744) settled on a farm in Johnston 
near the "seven mile line" which separated that town from Smithfield. 
Both the Daniel Angell House and the later Stephen Angell House (c. 
1767), about three tenths of a mile to the south on Putnam Pike 
(entered on the National Register as the Edwin Farnum Mouse May 17, 
1974) are within the area thus generally described.

An early twentieth century local publication^ pictures the 
Daniel Angell house with the caption "Olney Angell House." A more 
obscure article^ for an automobile tour of the area in December, 
1934, describes the Angell h9use at some length.

"... We will stop for a moment at an ancient dwelling 
which was much more than a century old... (in 1861)... 
Under its roof discussions of Revolutionary battles un­ 
doubtedly were held... We allude to the Angell homestead 
in Graniteville."

"This old building also served as a tavern for a time, 
after Olney Angell, son of Daniel Angell, its builder, had 
built an addition thereto, before the year 1800. During 
the days of the Revolution, however, it was a private 
dwelling, Olney Angell not having been born until 1772."

Although this article refers to Daniel Angell (b. September 
28, 1744 and d. March 9, 1810) as the builder of the house, the
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The house built by members of the Angell family and now known as the 
Farnum House is a two-story frame house, with gable roof set parallel to 
Putnam Pike (U.S. Route 44). Of center chimney plan, the rectangular 
structure is situated alone on a large open lot, but there are still 
remaining foundations of a small carriage house and outbuildings. The 
front facade is a five-bay composition, with the entrance slightly off 
center to the right. Evidence in the cellar indicates that the house 
originally consisted of three bays and the^deed history bears this out. 
Records show that the house was enlarged o&ouk i%§. It was evidently 
brought up to date at the same time and most of the existing detailing 
is Federal in character. The entrance has three quarter length sidelights 
and a segmental fanlight, set with radiating louvers on the exterior, 
framing a six raised panel door. The side and fanlights are Federal with 
a three-quarter round molding, with molded caps at the transom bar level 
and at the middle of the fanlight. The first floor portion of the front 
facade has two windows to the left of the entrance (with later sash) 
and a large projecting semi-octagonal bay window to the right (probably 
a^20th century addition). The upper floor has five windows, in line 
with those below at left and centered above the entrance and bay. The 
upper windows are framed into the molding of the eaves cornice. All 
window frames are flat, with no additional trim. All walls are covered 
with weather boards 4 inches to the weather, with equal spacing.

The gable end elevations have not been altered, with five windows 
(later sash) in the northwest end, 1/2/2, and four windows and a door 
in the southeast end. The rear elevation, however, has had a door set 
into the second floor level, replacing a window, and a door and enclosed 
porch added to first floor. The foundation is fieldstone set in lime 
mortar and faced with dressed granite, and the roof is modern asphalt 
shingles over early wood shingles. Corner boards are flat, with no bead, 
and the continuous sill board has a bevelled top edge.

The interior of the house has been changed, but enough remains to 
permit an accurate restoration. The first floor plan is dominated by 
the massive brick center chimney and enclosed, curved stairway. The 
plan is a five-room layout with three fireplaces serving the three main 
rooms. The rear half of the house has a large central room flanked by 
two smaller rooms with vertical plank walls as dividers. Beaded corner 
posts^remain exposed but much of the baseboard and chair rails have been 
replaced. All mantels, three on each floor, have been removed, but one 
original remains in storage. It is of a typical one-story ""Federal form, 
and all evidence indicates that the other mantels were of this same one- 
story type. Two later doors have been added to the small rear rooms on 
the first floor. Three of the remaining doors are original, but most are 
late 19th century. Except for the bay window, all window trim is original, 
but sash is 2/2. Floors, plaster walls and ceilings, except again for the 
room with the bay window, are original, as is the stairway, but the rail 
is later.

While the house has been altered, enough of the original fabric 
remains to permit an accurate restoration project.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The deed history indicates that this house was built about 1765 
by either Stephen Angell or his son Daniel. Stephen deeded "forty 
acres of land with a new house thereone standing" to Daniel in con­ 
sideration of the love, goodwill, and naturall affection I have (for 
him)" in 1767.

The Angells were descended from Thomas Angell who came as an 
apprentice with Roger Williams from England in 1631. Angell there­ 
after accompanied Williams when he was banished from the Massachusetts 
Bay Colony in 1636, to Seekonk and Rhode Island; and he was one of the 
original signers of the compact drawn up on August 20th, 1637 to form 
the town fellowship of Providence.

Stephen was Thomas Angell's great-grandson. He served in a number 
of civic capacities in Johnston including as a member of the Town Council,

Daniel gave half of the farm, including the dwelling house and other 
buildings, to his son Olney in 1795. Olney promptly built an addition 
to the house, remodelled the front door to its present federal appearance 
with wooden fan and sidelights, and opened the house as a tavern.

The Angell house is significant for its role in the history of the 
town, of Johnston, as a farm house, and as one of the town's taverns. 
It is also significant, for its typically colonial visual quality in-an 
increasingly modernized environment and for the information it yields 
about our early building practices. Steady erosion of our early 
architecture means that every surviving early structure is valuable today. 
Johnston particularly has been subject to heavy development in the 
twentieth century and this house is one of the town's few remaining 
landmarks that date back to pre-Revolutionary times. The town acquired 
the house in the 1940 f s and has recently committed itself to restoring 
it as a Bicentennial project.

The doorway was changed probably circa 1815-20,



m

Johnston, Town ot: Lana t,viaeace n.^u.Lus.

|MA|CmB|lB;L;lOGR-A: PHICALV^

Bayles, Richard M. : History of Providence County, Rhode Island (New York,
JLOyj.) .

Beers, D. G.: Atlas of Rhode Island (P
Beers, J. H. & Co.: Representative Men «,«* ~-.~ „«... ___ ,.__

hiladelphia, 1870) 
and Old Families.'. of Rhode Island

(Chicago, 1908), v. III. 
Bicknell, Thomas Williams: The History of the State of Rhode Island and
Providence Plantations (New York, 1920
Everts and Richards: Atlas of Surveys ^ ___, _ ._ __

), v. Ill 
of Providence County, Rhode Island

(Philadelphia, 1895. 
Johnston, Town of: Land Evidence Records.

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES 
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY C

r
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE

Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds 
NW o , „ o

NE ° ' " ° •-

SE ° ' " o ,
c\u Q ' * o f »->YY •

LATITUDE AND LONGIT'JDE COORDINATES 
1 DEFINING Thii LtiNiTZR POIN 1 OF A PROPERTY 
j OF LESS THAN TFN ACRESk " "

LATITUDE LONGITUDE

Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds

41 ° 51 • 46N " 71 ° 29 ' 39 "W 

I
APPROXIMATE A C R E AG E O F NOMIN A T ED PROPERTY: -T^gq«^ th^H 3 aCr"P» --'''"•" ^ .','""•

|LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR P ROP ERTI ES O V ER L AP PIN G ST A TE OR COUNTY' BOUN DARI ES -/ • V

STATE: CODE

STATE: CODE

STATE: CODE

STATE: CODE

COUNTY /-•/ (71 ~>.-~, ,r- n , CODE

/-/ -'.M'Lu \-;
COUNTY: /'•'•'; ; ','.'' tj U - • CODE' '• / ...,. ! :,.,.,._u. -! ,.. , &'* ;:: ;
COUNTY: \ .,-,\ f "' '' ; O' 1 V ,-' , / . "" CODEV-A REGivrr- - -^- ————

\/\ u --'c, v ,;-,;/
COUNTY: \C>/-.. CODE

NAME AND TITLE:

Russell Wright and Ancelin Lynch, Consultants
ORGANIZATION DATE

Rhode Island Historical Preservation Commission April, 1974
STREET AND NUMBER:

52 Power Street
CITY OR TOWN:

Providence
j^Si^-A:!^

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­ 
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 
in the National Register and certify that it has ;been 
evaluated according to the c-iteria.'and procedures set 
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended 
level of significance of this nomination is: 

NatfonaH n State Q Local ^

• —— ~N: — \ 1 V - r
-"•^""v ' \ (/ % -t K W

Name \ V>^XUv C \V-VV VV:\\\\\ f^VX^,^
\ <v ^— v

State Historic Preservation 
Title Officer

May 2, 1974
Bate

STATE CODE

Khode j-sland 44
mmmmitimimmfMtimttmmi^^

I hereby certify that this property is included in the 

National Register,

, :/^/^
Director, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation 

.,e ^///7/^

< t / 
ATTEST:

Q^l*^ *l Keeper of The National Register 

Date vT"' / & ' '7 i

rn 
rn

n

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE : 1973-729-147/1442 3-I



Form 10-300a 
(July 1969)

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) 1

STATE

Rhode Island
COUNTY

Providence
FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER

(Number all entries)

Deed research indicates that this house was built about 
1765 by Stephen Angell, who deeded "forty acres of land with 
a new house thereone standing" to his son Daniel "in con­ 
sideration of the love, goodwill, and natural affection I 
have (for him)" in 1767. Daniel apparently sold the house 
soon afterward.

The Angell family in Johnston descended from Thomas 
Angell who came as an apprentice with Roger Williams from 
England in 1631. Angell thereafter accompanied Williams 
when he was banished from the Massachusetts Bay Colony in 
1636, to Seekonk and Rhode Island; and he was one of the 
original signers of the compact drawn up on August 20th, 
1637 to form the town fellowship of Providence.

Stephen was Thomas Angell f s great-grandson. He served 
in a number of civic capacities in Johnston including as a 
member of the Town Council.

The Angell house is significant as one of the early 
homes of the ubiquitous and prolific Angell family, who 
were among the first settlers in Johnston. It is also 
important for its typically colonial visual quality in an 
increasingly modernized environment and for the information 
it yields about our early building practices. Steady erosion 
of our early architecture means that every surviving early 
structure is valuable today. Johnston particularly has been 
subject to heavy development in the twentieth century and 
this house is one of the town's few remaining landmarks 
that date back to pre-Revolutionary times. The town ac­ 
quired the house in the 1940's and has recently committed 
itself to restoring it as a Bicentennial project.

GP 0 921-724


